UNITED
NATIONS E

Economic and Social
Council

PROVI SI ONAL

E/ 1995/ SR. 59
11 Novenber 1995

ORI G NAL: ENGLI SH

Resumed substantive session for 1995
PROVI SI ONAL  SUMVARY RECORD OF THE 59t h MEETI NG
Hel d at Headquarters, New York,
on Thursday, 2 Novenber 1995, at 11 a.m

Pr esi dent : M. KAMAL (Paki st an)

CONTENTS

SOCI AL, HUMANI TARI AN AND HUVAN RI GHTS QUESTI ONS: REPCRTS OF SUBSI DI ARY BODI ES,
CONFERENCES AND RELATED QUESTI ONS (conti nued)

(f) SOCI AL DEVELOPMENT QUESTI ONS (conti nued)

CORGANI ZATI ON OF WORK

Corrections to this record should be subnmtted in one of the working
| anguages. They should be set forth in a nmenorandum and al so incorporated in a
copy of the record. They should be sent within one week of the date of this
docunent to the Chief, Oficial Records Editing Section, Ofice of Conference
and Support Services, room DC2-794, 2 United Nations Pl aza.

95- 81952 (E) /...



E/ 1995/ SR 59
Engl i sh
Page 2

The nmeeting was called to order at 11.55 a. m

SOC AL, HUMANI TARI AN AND HUVAN RI GHTS QUESTI ONS: REPORTS OF SUBSI DI ARY BODI ES,
CONFERENCES AND RELATED QUESTI ONS (continued) (FE/ 1995/124/ Add. 1)

Report of the Conmmttee on Non-governnental O ganizations

The PRESI DENT drew attention to the report of the Cormittee on
Non- gover nnental Organi zations (E/ 1995/124/ Add. 1). Paragraph 5 of the report
contai ned a draft decision recommended for adoption by the Council on
applications for participation in the open-ended inter-sessional Wrking G oup
of the Conm ssion on Human Rights to el aborate a draft declaration on the rights
of i ndi genous peopl es fromorgani zati ons of indi genous people not in
consultative status with the Economic and Social Council. He took it that the
Counci|l wi shed to adopt the draft decision

It was so deci ded.

(f) SOCI AL DEVELOPMENT QUESTI ONS (conti nued) (A/1995/123 and Corr.1 and
A/ 1995/ L. 69)

Ms. LIMUCO (Philippines), speaking on behalf of the Goup of 77 and
Chi na, proposed that the Council should resune consideration of docunent
E/ 1995/L.123 and Corr.1 in order to adopt the final draft of the world programe

of action for youth to the year 2000 and beyond. There was a consensus anong
the G oup of 77 and ot her del egations that there should be no further discussion
of any of the paragraphs in the text and that the final draft should therefore
be adopted at the current neeting. Delegations which had reservations about the
text could express their views, but that should not prevent the Council from
adopting the programme by consensus.

The PRESI DENT recalled that, at the previous neeting, it had been
reported that agreement had not been reached on a nunber of paragraphs during
t he open-ended i nformal consultations in the working group of the world
programe of action for youth. The President had then announced that no
consensus had yet been reached on the final draft in docunent E/1995/123 and

Corr.1 and that he would consult with the President of the General Assenbly on



E/ 1995/ SR 59
Engl i sh
Page 3

the matter. According to the statenent just made by the Philippines, that
situation had changed and a consensus seened to have been reached.

M. ELDEEB (Egypt) said that nothing had changed since the Council's
previous neeting and that a consensus had still not been reached on the draft
text. Wiile his del egation hoped that the world programe woul d be adopted by
consensus, he wished to further inprove the text so that it could be acceptable
to all the delegations. Further informal consultations could be held in order
to achieve a consensus; and the world programe could then be adopted by
consensus in a formal neeting.

Ms. WAHBI (Sudan) said that her del egation wi shed to adopt the world
programe of action for youth in order to have a franework for internationa
cooperation in that field. Nevertheless, no consensus had energed since the
previ ous neeting of the Council

Ms. TAVARES DE ALVAREZ (Cbserver for the Domi ni can Republic) urged
the Council to adopt the world programme of action for youth by consensus at
that nmeeting in view of the inportance of the question and the agreenent reached
on the matter by the Group of 77 and ot her del egati ons.

M. RODRI QUEZ ((Qbserver for Spain), speaking on behalf of the European
Union, said that his delegation had felt that a consensus had been reached
during the open-ended informal consultations on the world programe of action
and therefore supported its adoption by consensus at the current neeting.

The PRESIDENT said that, follow ng the previous neeting of the
Council, he had informed the President of the General Assenbly that a consensus
had not been reached on the world programme of action owing to | ack of tine.
However, if a consensus had been reached on the draft text subsequently, it
could be adopted at the current neeting.

Ms. LIMIUCO (Philippines) said that there was consensus on the

docunent. When she had referred, in her statenent to the General Assenbly, to
di sagreenment, she had neant that it had not been possible to acconmpdate the
views of all delegations in the final text. Nevertheless, the document had
recei ved broad agreenent and those del egati ons which had reservations shoul d not
now attenpt to reopen di scussion

M. OTUYELU (Nigeria) said that the programe of action had been
drafted after two years of deliberations by the working group which, in his

vi ew, had done a good job. At the special plenary neetings of the Genera



E/ 1995/ SR 59
Engl i sh
Page 4

Assenbly all speakers had called for its adoption. Though not all del egations
were satisfied with every part of the text, they nmust bear in mnd that no
docunment coul d be perfect and he appealed to themto approve the programe of
action now before them inperfect though it was.

M. DEHGHANI (Cbserver for the Islamc Republic of Iran) said that

further consultations were necessary since no consensus had been reached on
certai n paragraphs of the docunent.

The PRESI DENT said he wished to make it clear that consensus had been
reached on all paragraphs of the document, but that consensus had subsequently
broken down. It would be incorrect to give the inpression that there had never
been consensus.

M. AGEREY (Chana) said he also recalled that consensus had been
reached. Moreover, the consensus had broken down over issues which had been
di scussed many tines already. The real question was not whether there had been
consensus, but whether the Council genuinely wi shed to adopt a programe of
action. |If that were the case, the docunent woul d be approved at once, as the
Phi | i ppi ne del egati on had requested. No del egation should try to undo what had
been achi eved by the Wrking Goup. The Council nust act with dignity, maturity
and responsibility. |t must decide whether it was nore inportant to arrive at
consensus or to agree upon a text. If further informal discussions were held,
it was unlikely that any text woul d energe.

M. COOVA (Chile) agreed that the debate should not be prol onged
indefinitely. Delegations which had objections to specific paragraphs shoul d
join the consensus, stating their reservations after the adoption of the
programe of action.

Ms. WAHBI (Sudan) said that, while her del egation supported the
concept of a world programre of action for youth, no purpose would be served by
adopti ng a docunent upon whi ch consensus had not been reached, since States
woul d not be able to inplenment a text which did not acconmobdate their concerns.

M. ELDEEB (Egypt) said that, while his del egation wi shed the docunent
to be adopted as soon as possible, there nust be genui ne consensus. Egypt had
requested that the wording of three paragraphs should be inproved. There had
been no intention to reopen negotiations on the entire text.

M. CONTIN (France) said he supported the view of the Spanish

del egation that the statenent made by the Chairman of the working group to the

/...



E/ 1995/ SR 59
Engl i sh
Page 5

effect that consensus had not been reached was incorrect. The docunent had been
agreed upon by all parties present, including those del egati ons which had since
expressed objections. He urged themto state their reservations after the
adoption of the document in accordance with the usual procedure.

Ms. ENGELBRECHT (South Africa) observed that consensus and unanimty
were not synonynmous. |If the Council strove to reach unanimty, nothing would be
achi eved.

Ms. LIMIUCO (Philippines), supported by Ms. CH GAGA ((Qoserver for

Zanbi a) said that, as consensus had been reached, the Council should proceed to

adopti on of the programe of action.

M. TELLES RIBEIRO (Brazil), recalling that consensus was not the sane
thing as unanimty, suggested that an appeal m ght be nade to those del egations
which still had sone difficulties with the wording of the text to nake
declarations to that effect after its adoption

Ms. MURUGESAN (I ndia) expressed support for the remarks made by
Brazil, the Philippines and South Africa, and said that the interpretation of
any particul ar paragraph was a matter for each individual Menber State.

M. DEHGHANI (Cbserver for the Islamc Republic of Iran) said that,

despite the existence of the right to express reservations, it would be

preferable for the Council to arrive at a genui ne consensus, and that with some
flexibility, it should be possible to do so.

Ms. MBUYA (United Republic of Tanzania) said that consensus had in
fact been reached, and appealed to all del egations to adopt the docunent.

Ms. DURAN (Venezuel a) said that her del egation had joined the
consensus within the Goup of 77, and was in favour of adopting the docunent.

Ms. BUCK (Canada) agreed with the remarks of the European Union and of
the G oup of 77. After so many years of negotiation, it was time to adopt the
docunent, and those del egati ons whi ch had probl ens shoul d make reservati ons.

Ms. AKBAR ((Qnserver for Antigua and Barbuda) and M. BARRETO (Cbserver
for Peru) expressed support for the appeal nade by the del egation of the
Phi l'i ppi nes, on behalf of the Goup of 77, that the document shoul d be adopted
wi t hout further delay.

The PRESI DENT suggested that an overwhel m ng nunber of nenbers of the
Council were in favour of imediate adoption of the draft programme of action

The latest attenpt to introduce anmendnents to certain paragraphs had failed to

/...



E/ 1995/ SR 59
Engl i sh
Page 6

bring on board any w der support in the Council, and he urged that those
countries which had difficulties, rather than bl ocki ng consensus, should enter
their reservations in whatever manner they w shed. Oherw se, the debate on the
subj ect woul d continue endlessly. |If it proved inpossible for the Council to
adopt any docunment on the subject of the world programe of action, the
credibility and sense of responsibility of the Council would be seriously called
into question.

M. ELDEEB (Egypt) said that his Governnent still had reservations
regarding the formul ati on of paragraphs 56, 57 and 58 of the draft. The rights
of young people in the area of sexual health nust be understood within the
framework of parental responsibilities. H's delegation would not, however,
oppose the consensus on the adoption of the draft.

Ms. WAHBI (Sudan) said that a real consensus would require that the
wor | d programme of action should be truly capable of being inplenented. That in
turn required that the preoccupations of different States, with their diverse
soci al structures and cultural and religious beliefs, should be taken into
account. \Wile the programe contained many positive elenents, it did not
sufficiently take account of those differences.

The PRESI DENT said that he would take it that the Council w shed to
adopt the draft of the world programme of action for youth to the year 2000 and
beyond.

It was so deci ded.

Ms. WAHBI (Sudan) said that her del egati on had reservations on
par agraphs 8 (g), 49, 56, 57 and 58 of the draft world programre of action. The
culture, society, and beliefs of the Sudan were such that no pregnancy coul d be
consi dered unwant ed, except for nedical reasons. Al so, the provision to young
peopl e and adol escents of health-care services in respect of sexual matters nust
be subject to parental guidance and supervision

M. KHAN (Pakistan) said that his Government, while wel com ng the
adoption of the draft world programme of action for youth to the year 2000 and
beyond, reserved its position regardi ng paragraphs 56, 57 and 58.

The PRESI DENT invited the Council to consider the draft resolution
contai ned in docunent E/1995/L.69, recommending to the General Assenbly the
adoption of the Wirld Progranme of Action for Youth to the Year 2000 and Beyond.



E/ 1995/ SR 59
Engl i sh
Page 7

M. AQUARONE (Netherlands), speaking on behalf of the sponsors, said

t hat the begi nning of paragraph 2 of the draft resolution should be anended to

read "lnvites CGovernnents, with the support of the international comunity,

non- gover nnent al organi zations, as well as the public and private sectors ...".
Ms. LIMUCO (Philippines), supported by M. ELDEEB (Egypt), proposed

that in the fifth preanbul ar paragraph, the words "including the Youth Forunf

shoul d be del et ed.

M. AQUARONE (Netherlands) said that the sponsors woul d accept that

amendnent .

The draft resolution, as orally revised, was adopted.

The PRESI DENT expressed his thanks to those del egati ons which, despite
their significant difficulties with the draft world programe of action, had

none the less permtted its adoption by consensus.
ORGANI ZATI ON OF WORK

The PRESI DENT informed the Council that, in the context of efforts to
bring the Bretton Wods institutions closer to the United Nations system an
agreenment had been signed between the United Nations, the Wrld Trade
Organi zation and the International Mnetary Fund (1 M), copies of which would be
circulated to nmenbers of the Council. Furthernore, the Managing Director of | M
and the President of the Wrld Bank had been invited to take part in an informa

neeting of the Council.

The neeting rose at 1.25 p. m




